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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
IRAEE

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the Group’s consolidated financial results for
the 2019 Financial Year and give an overview of the Group's strategy and business
outlook.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Last year, the Company's management team has demonstrated its ability to overcome
the unforeseen challenges of business interruption of the Vietnam factory, the
matter has been resolved completely and production capacity is resumed to normal.
During the year, moderate growth in the financial performance was recorded due to
improvement of the product mix as a result of change of business strategy.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

As at the date of this report, the trade war still shows no sign of ending. If it results
in shifting of production sites of garment factories to South East Asia from the
mainland, competitions among textiles mills will become more intense. Added to
that, the fluctuation of key currencies and inflation on cost of operations, the outlook
of the global economy is full of challenges. Despite of the short term uncertainty,
the Company shall prepare to thrive on the turbulent economic environment, and
is looking for a new production site in Vietnam to cater for its medium to long term
business growth.

| am delighted that Mr. Masaru Okutomi, a seasoned management executive shall join
the Group as an executive Director and Vice Chairman in July 2019, with his ample
experience and knowledge, Mr. Okutomi shall bring in new perspective and insight to
the team.

The Company shall continue to focus on the following strategies:

(i) Expanding the customer bases by development of high quality functional
synthetic fabrics;

(i) Saving costs and improving efficiency by disciplined budgetary control;
(iii) Upholding the corporate social responsibility by investing in greener production
methods; and

(iv) Pursuing for medium to long term organic growth by expanding production line
in three to five years term.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to express my sincere appreciation to our
customers, business partners, suppliers, stakeholders and bankers for their continuous
support to the Group during the period, | sincerely hope our employees will be able
to grow together with the Group, enjoy balanced life, and realize their potential in the
Group.

I ' would also thank our shareholders for their continuous support and confidence in

the Group during the past year.

On behalf of the Board

WAN Wai Loi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 June 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEREN

OVERVIEW

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
manufacturing and trading of textiles products, including high quality cotton and
synthetic knitted fabrics.

Revenue

During the year under review, revenue of the Group was approximately HK$6,119.1
million (2018: approximately HK$6,098.2 million) representing an increase of 0.3% as
compared with the year ended 31 March 2018.

Revenue generated from sales of goods from different geographical locations (as
determined by where the products were delivered to) is set out in note 5 to the
Financial Statements of the Company on page 113.

Other income comprising, among others, sales of residual materials and government
grants (including the support of using new technology and cleaner production) are
set out in note 22 of the Financial Statements of the Company on page 141.

Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group was approximately HK$5,058.2 million (2018: HK$5,151.0
million) representing a decrease of 1.8% as compared with the year ended 31 March
2018.

Profit

During the year under review, the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
was HK$861.8 million (2018: approximately HK$744.0 million) representing an increase
of 15.8% as compared with last year.

The upturn was mainly due to various factors, including but not limited to:

(i) The steady resumption of production of Vietnam factory since early 2018;

(i) Broadened customer base and better sales mix.

Selling and distribution expenses

During the year, the selling and distribution expenses decreased to HK$65.9 million
(2018: HKS94.2 million) mainly due to the decrease in cost in meeting customer
claims arising from the production suspension of Vietnam factory during April 2017 to
December 2017.

Administration expenses
The administration expenses increased to HK$192.0 million (2018: HK$142.3 million)
mainly due to increase in staff cost.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW (Cont'd)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Finance costs

Finance costs consisted of interest expenses on bank loan decreased by approximately
16% to HKS14.2 million (2018: HK$16.9 million) as a result of the reduction of the total
amount of loan and substitute the US loan by lower interest rate HKD loan.

Trade receivables day and Trade payable day
Trade receivables day was 49 days while the trade payable day was 49 days.

Income tax

The Group recorded an income tax expense from continuing operations of
approximately HK$145.5 million during the year under review (2018: HK$130.1 million).
There was no significant change in applicable tax rates for the Company’s subsidiaries
for both years. The average effective tax rate of the Group was 14.3% which was lower
than last year (2018: 15.2%).

Assets

As at 31 March 2019, the total assets of the Group were HK$4,530.2 million (2018:
HKS$4,852.7 million) representing a decrease of 6.6%. The total assets comprised
non-current assets of HK$2,001.3 million (2018: HK$2,046.4 million) and current assets
of HK$2,528.9 million (2018: HK$2,806.3 million).

Key financial ratios are set out below:

Gross Profit Margin®” E <
Return on Equity® RSO 3{ &

Interest Coverage Ratio® FEEEL RO
Notes:

(1) The calculation of Gross Profit Margin is based on gross profit divided by revenue and
multiplied by 100%.

(2) The calculation of Return on Equity is based on profit for the year divided by total
equity and multiplied by 100%.

(3) The calculation of Interest Coverage Ratio is based on profit before interest expenses on
bank loans and tax expenses divided by interest expenses on bank loans.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRED T

OVERVIEW (Cont'd)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Liquidity and financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2019, the Group was in a net cash position of HK$274.7 million (2018:
HKS$207.3 million).

The Group's principal source of working capital was cash generated from sales of its
products, supplemented with bank borrowings and a shareholder’s loan contributed
by our joint venture partner for the Vietnam subsidiary.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total cash and bank balances of HK$720.9 million
(2018: HK$666.7 million) comprising of HK$103.3 million, the equivalent of HK$391.3
million denominated in USS, the equivalent of HK$225.9 million denominated in RMB,
the equivalent of HK$0.3 million denominated in VND and the equivalent of HK$0.1
million denominated in other currencies. The cash and bank balances and time
deposits were to finance the Group’s working capital and capital expenditure plans.

The Group had bank loans of HK$300 million (2018: HK$313.3 million) and the
shareholder’s loan of HK$146.2 million (2018: HK$146.2 million) contributed by our
joint venture partner to the Vietnam subsidiary. The said shareholder’s loan was of
equity nature and was not repayable within one year. The Group did not pledge any of
its assets for bank borrowing (2018: Nil).

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group's total assets amounted to HK$4,530.2
million (2018: HKS$4,852.7 million) representing a decrease of 6.6%. Non-current assets
and current assets were HK$2,001.3 million and HK$2,528.9 million respectively. The
above assets were financed by current liabilities of HK$1,051.6 million, non-current
liabilities of HK$209.0 million and equity attributable to Shareholders of HK$3,269.6
million.

Capital expenditure and capital commitment

The Group had been adopting cautious measures and fine-tuned its capital
expenditure in response to the market demand. During the year under review, total
capital expenditure increased by 31.4% to HK$223.2 million (2018: HK$169.9 million)
which was mainly used to purchase machinery and to finance the environmental
protection projects of Panyu factory and Vietnam factory.

Details on the land use rights, property, plant and equipment are set out on pages 114
to 116 of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW(Cont'd)
BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)
Key liquidity or leverage ratios:

EEEmED
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As at 31 March
M3H318

2019

Current Ratio® B H R @
Quick Ratio® RB) RO
Gearing Ratio® BARB B RO
Debt to Equity Ratio?” BEREIL X

Notes:
(4) The calculation of Current Ratio is based on current assets divided by current liabilities.

(5) The calculation of Quick Ratio is based on current assets minus inventories divided by
current liabilities.

(6) The calculation of Gearing Ratio is based on total borrowings and bills payable divided
by total equity multiplied by 100%.

(7) The calculation of Debt to Equity Ratio is based on total liabilities divided by total equity
multiplied by 100%.

Risk Management on Foreign Exchange and Interest Exposure

The Group had been exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures with respect to the US Dollars, Renminbi and Vietnamese Dongs primarily.
The Group managed its foreign exchange risks by performing regular review and
monitoring its foreign exchange exposures. The Group would hedge against certain of
its exposures in order to reduce the risk involved as appropriate.

The Group mainly operated in Hong Kong, PRC, Macau and Vietnam. Except for certain
cash and bank balances and certain inter-company receivables denominated in
foreign currencies, transactions were generally conducted in a functional currency of
the respective group entity. The foreign currency risk arising from recognised assets
and liabilities was considered by the Directors to be minimal.

The Group had been using forward foreign currency contracts to hedge part of its
foreign exchange risk. These forward foreign currency contracts did not qualify for
hedge accounting and were accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.

Operating Lease Commitments
Details of the operating lease commitments are set out on pages 150 to 151 of this
annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRED T

OVERVIEW (Cont'd)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Pledge of Assets

No assets were pledged to obtain financing as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019
respectively.

Segmental Information
Details of segmental information are set out in note 5 to the annual financial
information.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures

There was no material acquisition or disposal of the Company’s subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2018: Nil).

Events Subsequent to the Period
Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no significant event undertaken by
the Company or by the Group after 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL REPORTING

The Group had spared no effort to continuously invest in the environmental
protection, energy consumption and reduction of wastage, and the achievements
were well recognized. Below are some of the awards and accreditation from the
governmental bodies or international organizations received by Panyu factory during
the year under review:

2017 Outstanding Model Project in Environmental Protection awarded by
Guangdong Environment Protection Industry Association in May 2018%

2017 Leading Energy Efficient Enterprise honored by The Economic & Information
Commission of Guangdong Province in June 2018".

2018 Energy Management Insight Award granted by Clean Energy Ministerial
("CEM") in May 2018.

2018 Textile Industry Informationization Achievement Award (Problem Solution
Award) — First Class Award granted by China National Textile & Apparel Council
("CNTAC") in September 2018,

2018 Textile Industry Informationization Achievement Award (Innovative

Application Award) - Second Class Award granted by China National Textile &
Apparel Council ("CNTAC") in September 2018,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL REPORTING (Cont'd)

One of the Top 10 Best Energy Saving Technologies and Best Practices Case
selected by National Development and Reform Commission (“NDRC") and be
further nominated by NDRC being an representative of China for an international
award organized by International Partnership for Energy Efficiency Cooperation
("IPEEC")*.

The technology of “Online Monitoring and Optimized Operation of Dyeing and
Printing Wastewater Treatment” was included in the 12th batch of recommended
catalogues of advanced technologies in energy saving and emission reduction in
China’s dyeing and printing industry in June 2018%

Guangzhou Green Factory granted by Industry & Information Technology
Commission of Guangzhou Municipality in October 2018,

An Environmental Integrity Enterprise (Green Card) granted by Department of
Ecology and Environment of Guangdong Province in October 2018,

National Green Factory granted by the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of PRC in October 2018,

One of the top 10 Energy-Saving Enterprises 2018 granted by Guangzhou Energy
Conservation Association in January 2019%
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PRODUCT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

During the year, the Company contributed to develop innovative products to meet
the market needs. The Company has received awards for its new products, such as:

EmiE
RAEE  ARARAFERIFMERADLE
MEHEE - ARBIFEMKES [HEIA - f

A quick-drying breathable tight-fitting yoga fabric was awarded the First Class
Award of 2018 China excellent dyeing and printing fabric by China Dyeing and
Printing Association (“CDPA”") in April 2018,

A deodorant light and smooth series of fabrics was awarded the First Class Award
of 2018 China excellent dyeing and printing fabric by China Dyeing and Printing
Association (“CDPA") in April 2018".

A warm air layered underwear fabric was awarded the Second Class Award of
2018 China excellent dyeing and printing fabric by China Dyeing and Printing
Association (“CDPA") in April 2018".

Product Development Contribution Award granted by China National Textile &
Apparel Council (“CNTAC") in December 2018¥.

The warm air layered underwear fabric was awarded the “Textile Light” -
Innovation Contribution Award of Knitted Underwear by China National Textile &

Apparel Council (“CNTAC") in October 2018%.

The English translated version is for reference only. If there is any inconsistency
between the Chinese and English versions, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRED T

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 5,688 full-time employees (2018: 5,543). There was
no significant change in the Group’s remuneration policy. The Group’s remuneration
package for its employees included salary, bonuses, allowances and retirement
benefits based on the performance, skills and knowledge of each employee. The
Group also provided additional benefits to its employees, for instances subsidized
accommodation and meals for those working in production facilities, accident and
medical insurance, etc.

The Group will continue to provide regular trainings and competitive remuneration
package to the employees in order to enhance their incentive and motivation to work.

DIVIDENDS

The Board proposed to pay a final dividend of HK25 cents (2018: HK18.5 cents) per
share for the 2019 Financial Year, subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM. Together with an interim dividend of HK32 cents (2018: HK26.5
cents) per share, the total dividend for the 2019 Financial Year amounted to HK57
cents (2018: HK45 cents) per share.

PROSPECT AND OUTLOOK

The Group had recorded moderate growth in gross profit during the year under
review as compared with the same period of last financial year. The increase in gross
profit was mainly due to the improvement of product mix (raising the higher-priced
product proportion) and the resumption of operation of Vietnam factory. However,
such effect was partially off-set by the slight decrease of sales volume (in pounds), in
particular, due to the lower than forecasted demand in synthetic fabrics used for cold
resistant clothing as a result of warm winter in some of the key markets.

It is generally believed that the warm weather will appear to continue thus indirectly
hinder the growth in sales of cold resistant fabrics, therefore the Group is exploring
new product lines for high quality synthetic fabrics for sportswear.

Despite constrained customer spending in key economies around the world, the
Group believes that the global demand for sportswear, such as indoor sportswear
and fitness apparel is expected to be continuing to rise, and therefore, developing
functional fabrics by advanced technology will be the focus of the Group for next year,
to achieve steady increase in its market shares in fabrics for sportswear in the next few
years.

Geographically, the Group will further diversify its business risk and balance its
customer base by further develop the mainland China market.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECT AND OUTLOOK (Cont'd)

Looking forward, the trade barriers do not seem to pose direct and immediate impact
on the Group's business because the amount of fabrics exported by the Group to the
USA is insignificant. However, the indirect and long term impact remain unseen. Rising
costs in labor, materials and environmental protection related matters also increase
the cost of production, the Group has constantly monitored the cost and adopted
measures in cost cutting and savings. Amidst the rising cost, the Group upholds its
commitment to adopt green technology in production. The Panyu factory has been
recognized by Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of PRC and named as
“National Green Factory” in 2018.

The Group has been actively seeking appropriate location for a new production base
in Vietnam with a view to lowering the average cost and risk diversification. As at the
date of this report, the discussion with the owner of an industrial zone is on-going.

In the rapidly changing world, the management will implement appropriate flexible
measures and business strategies to grasp the business opportunity and cope with the
challenges ahead.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESREREEAGEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WAN Wai Loi, aged 69, co-founded the Group in 1997 and has been appointed
as a Director of the Company since 2004. He is currently an executive Director,
Chairman and a Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Moreover, he is a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group and a non-executive director of Teejay Lanka Plc,
an associated company of the Group, whose shares are listed on the Colombo Stock
Exchange in Sri Lanka. He is responsible for leading the management team to oversee
the overall production and operation of the Group, providing corporate directions and
formulating business strategies of the Group. Mr. Wan obtains a Bachelor of Science
Degree in Chemical Engineering from National Cheng Kung University in Taiwan. He
has over 48 years of experience in the textiles industry.

Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI, aged 61, will join the Group on 1 July 2019 as executive
Director and the Vice Chairman of the Board. Mr. Okutomi holds a bachelor’s degree
in law from Hitotsubashi University in 1981 and after his graduation, he joined the
merchandise sales department (textiles) of Toray. Toray is a company listed on the
Tokyo Stock Exchange and is a substantial shareholder of the Company. He has been
the managing director of Toray Industries (South China) Co., Ltd. and Toray Industries
(H.K) Ltd. from May 2016 to 30 June 2019, and the deputy managing director of Toray
Industries (China) Co., Ltd. from May 2016 to 30 June 2019. Mr. Okutomi has extensive
experience in management of textiles business.

Mr. TOU Kit Vai, aged 56, joined the Group in 2013 and became a Chief Financial
Officer on 1 April 2014. Mr. Tou has been appointed as an executive Director from
1 July 2017. Moreover, he is a director of various subsidiaries of the Group and a
non-executive director of Teejay Lanka Plc,, an associated company of the Group,
whose shares are listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange in Sri Lanka. Mr. Tou
has extensive experience in factory operations, financial management, project
management and ERP system. He is responsible for overseeing the corporate financial
management, information technology, group administration and human resources,
and back office operations. Mr. Tou is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He was an executive director of a company listed on the Stock Exchange during the
period from 2007 to 2012.

Mr. Toshiya ISHII, aged 56, joined the Group in 2017 as an executive Director. Mr. Ishii
is responsible for the Group’s budgetary control and setting up of key performance
indicators for fulfilling corporate goal and targets. Mr. Ishii was employed by Toray
after graduation from Keio University in 1985. Prior to joining the Group, he was a
general manager of controller's department of Toray and he has extensive experience
in the textiles industry.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong, aged 71, joined the Group in 1997 and became a Non-executive
Director in 2007. He has been re-designated as an executive Director and appointed
as the Vice Chairman of the Group from 1 July 2017. From 1 June 2019, Mr. Lau has
been re-designated as Non-executive Director of the Company and ceased to act as
the Vice Chairman of the Board. Mr. Lau holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Technology
from Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Technical College). He has over 42 years of experience in the textiles industry, and he
is now the Vice Chairman of Group 3 (Dyeing and Finishing) of Federation of Hong
Kong Industries.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 67, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2007. He was the former chairman and
is currently the non-executive director of Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong
listed company which he joined in 1984, and has considerable experience in planning
and management. Dr. Chan has also been an independent non-executive director of
Starlite Holdings Limited since 1993, Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
since 2010, Modern Dental Group Limited since 2015 and Human Health Holdings
Limited since 2016, and a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings Limited
since 2007, the abovementioned companies are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Dr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts, a Master degree in City Planning
from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business
Administration and is also bestowed as Honorary Fellow from Lingnan University.
He is currently the adviser of the Quality Tourism Services Association, the Honorary
Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing and the chairman of Business
Enterprise Management Centre of The Hong Kong Management Association.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEAGEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. NG Ching Wah, aged 70, has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2007. Mr. Ng has over 32 years of senior management
experience in the telecommunications industry. Mr. Ng was a director and a member
of the executive committee for Advanced Info Service Public Company Limited, a
Thailand listed company. He was an independent director of China Digital TV Holding
Co. Ltd,, a New York Stock Exchange listed company and a non-executive director of
HKC International Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company. He was the chief
executive officer of Hong Kong CSL Limited. He was the chief executive officer of
SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company and
the President of PCCW Mobility Services Limited. Mr. Ng is the Honorary Advisor of
the Communications Association of Hong Kong and is the appointed member of
Communications Authority, an independent statutory body established under the
Communications Authority Ordinance in April 2012. Mr. Ng was a member of the
Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee (D21SAC). Mr. Ng graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1975, with a Bachelor of Business and Administration.

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel, aged 62, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2007. Mr. Sze has senior management
experience in the private and investment banking industry serving high net worth
clients and institutions. Mr. Sze is also an independent non-executive director of
Wecon Holdings Limited since 27 February 2019, which a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He was the managing director, head of China and Hong
Kong of Julius Baer Bank; the chief executive officer of EFG Asset Management (Hong
Kong) Limited for Asia Pacific Region; the managing director, head of investment
of Citi Wealth Management for Asia Pacific region; the chief executive officer of
Asia-Pacific for Barclays Wealth and an executive director in the private clients division
at Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, Hong Kong. Mr. Sze holds a Master of Business from
the University of Newcastle, Australia. He is a Fellow of CPA Australia.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHAN Sau Yee, is the Company Secretary. Ms. Chan is a fellow member of
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in United Kingdom (ICSA) and
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (HKICS) respectively. She was
awarded the Chartered Governance Professional Qualification by ICSA and HKICS in
2018. She has obtained a Bachelor Degree in Economics and a Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws from the University of Hong Kong. She also holds a Bachelor of Law Degree
from the University of London. Ms. Chan has ample corporate secretarial experience
gained from international law firms, listed companies and large private groups.
Ms. Chan joined the Company in November 2017.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GAO Jinhua, aged 53, is the General Manager (Production) and a director of
some of the subsidiaries of the Company who has worked for the Group for more
than 20 years and is experienced in operational and production management. Prior
to taking up the current position, Mr. Gao has been the head of dyeing factory and
Assistant General Manager of the Production Department. Mr. Gao graduated from the
Shanghai Normal University, major in Chemistry in 1988.

Mr. ZHAO Qizhi, aged 53, is the General Manager (Engineering) and a director of
some of the subsidiaries of the Company who joined the Group in 1997 and has
over 25 years of experience in the textiles industry. He is responsible for managing
the engineering department of the factories. Mr. Zhao holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Mechanical Engineering from Shanghai Jiaotong University, China.

Mr. LAI Chi Man, aged 53, is the General Manager (Sales) and a director of some of
the subsidiaries of the Company who joined the Group in 1998 and has over 25 years
of experience in the textiles industry. Mr. Lai holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Textile
and Clothing Marketing from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He also obtained
a Master of Business Administration Degree (The Kellogg — HKUST EMBA Program)
awarded by Northwestern University and The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology jointly.

Mr. Koji ASADA, aged 50, is the General Manager (Marketing). Upon his graduation
from Faculty of Economics, Kwansei Gakuin University in 1991, Mr. Asada joined
Toray. Starting his career as a textiles salesman, he was later promoted as the section
manager of the fashion fabrics and was seconded to TSD (Toray Skai Dyeing &
Weaving) in Nantong City, China in 2008 where he had been a director for 6 years.
Mr. Asada also has experience as staple fiber general manager and sports textile
general manager.

Mr. TSANG Sian Chung, Hubert, aged 42, is the Chief Information Officer and a
director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Tsang joined the Group in 2010 and now
leads the Group's digitalization initiatives. Mr. Tsang has over 20 years of experience
in the IT field, ranging from performing academic research on high performance
computing to building large scale Internet websites to building and maintaining
enterprise shared services. Mr. Tsang holds an MBA degree and Bachelor of Computer
Science, both from the University of Maryland, College Park.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEAGEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Mr. CHUNG Chi Shing, aged 55, is the Assistant General Manager (Production
Technology) and a director of a subsidiary of the Company who joined the Group in
1998 and has been serving for 21 years. He is responsible for Dyeing and Finishing
Technology, Fabric Development, Procurement of yarns, dyes and chemicals (DCA).
Mr. Chung graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Textile Chemistry,
with over 30 years of experience in textiles industry. He is a holder of Chartered
Colourist granted by the Society of Dyers and Colourists.

Mr. WANG Sijie, aged 48, is the Assistant General Manager (Dyeing and Finishing) and
a director of a subsidiary of the Company who joined the Group in 1997. Mr. Wang
is responsible for the management of dyeing and finishing factory. Mr. Wang is a
professorate senior engineer and a holder of master degree. He is the Vice President
of Guangzhou Textile Engineering Society and a member of expert and technical
committee of China Knitting Industry Association (B/MN#4 TIRE2ESFBER - F
B TEREERRIMEZEEZ ). Mr. Wang was awarded as outstanding chief
engineer by China Knitting Industries Association and technical innovation award by
China Textile Engineering Society.

Mr. Masaonbu SATO, aged 46, is the Assistant General Manager (Research and
Development) since 2017. Mr. Sato has over 20 years of experience in textiles and
related production technique development. Mr. Sato has studied material engineering
in Tokyo Metropolitan University. Upon his graduation, he joined Toray. Prior to joining
the Company, he has been working in different factory and laboratory in Japan and
China, such as Taltex (Zhuhai) Ltd. and Toray Fiber Research Centre.

Mr. CHENG Kam Fai, Eugene, aged 59, is the Assistant General Manager (Human
Resources Management and Administration) who joined the Company in 2012.
Mr. Cheng is mainly responsible for Group Human Resources, Administration,
Corporate Social Responsibility and Procurement Management in China and Vietnam.
Mr. Cheng graduated with BA (Hons.) and EMBA from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong (CUHK) together with a professional Diploma in Business Management from
the CUHK. He has extensive working experiences in Human Resources Management,
General Administration, Corporate Social Responsibility and Procurement
Management in both Hong Kong and China.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the 2019 Financial Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of textiles products,
including high quality cotton and synthetic knitted fabrics.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the 2019 Financial Year by
geographical locations of business operations is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group during the year and discussions on its future developments are
provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, business and prospects might be
affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The followings were the key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group for the 2019 Financial Year. There might be other
risks and/or uncertainties in addition to those outlined below which were unknown
to the Group or which might not be material during the period under review but will
turn out to be material in the future.

Business Risk

The macro-economic and political factors, such as potential trade barriers between
China and United States of America and Sino-Vietnamese relations, posed uncertainty
to the business of the Group. Global trend of lower economic growth, fluctuated
inflation, and unstable foreign exchange rate and interest rate were also the factors
that adversely affected the financial performance of the Group.

Strategic Direction Risk

The success of future business depends on the achievement of our strategic
objectives including but not limited to acquisitions, joint ventures, disposals and/or
restructurings. The Group faced risk in its application of assets and capital towards
potential investments when business and investment opportunities had arisen.

Legal and Compliance Risk

Legal risk might be constituted due to unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or
unfavourable judgements which disrupted or negatively affected the business
operations or financial conditions of the Group.

Failing to oblige by relevant applicable laws and regulations might constitute

compliance risk. The Group might suffer from financial losses or losses in reputation
due to any possible legal risk or regulatory sanctions.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont'd)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont’d)

Policy risk

The change in governmental policies and regulations in the countries in which the
Group operated, such as amended environmental protection policies, might result
in adjustment to production method or increase in cost in fulfilling those statutory
standards.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2019 are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the 2019 Financial Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 58 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK32 cents (2018: HK26.5 cents) per Share was paid on 21
December 2018 to the Shareholders. The Board has recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK25 cents (2018: HK18.5 cents) per Share. Subject to the approval
of the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, the final dividend of HK25 cents will be
paid on 29 August 2019 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company on 19 August 2019.

The Board intends to maintain long term return for shareholders. In deciding
whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board
shall take into consideration of various factors, such as the financial results of the
operation, general financial condition of the Group, future funding requirements on
capital, business operations and development, general market conditions, interest
of shareholders as a whole, legal requirements, and other conditions that the Board
deems relevant.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of the Members of the Company will be closed from 5 August 2019 to
8 August 2019 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM, during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify
for attending the forthcoming AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F,,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 2 August 2019. The record date which determines the Shareholder’s voting right is
scheduled on 5 August 2019.

The Register of the Members of the Company will be closed from 15 August 2019 to
19 August 2019 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F,,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 14 August 2019.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company during the 2019
Financial Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the 2019 Financial Year are
set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$2,739 million (2018: HK$2,372 million) comprising the share
premium, share-based reserve and the retained earnings of the Company.

Under the Companies Law (Cap. 22) of the Cayman Islands, in addition to the retained
earnings of the Company, the share premium and capital reserves of the Company are
also available for distribution to the Shareholders provided that the Company will be
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately
following the date on which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws of the

Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the 2019 Financial Year.

DONATIONS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and other donation totalling
approximately HK$556,000 (2018: HK$354,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Expenditure of approximately HK$223 million (2018: HK$170 million) was incurred
during 2019 Financial Year primarily to expand the production capacity of the Group.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITALISED INTERESTS

During the 2019 Financial Year, no interest had been capitalised (2018: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's Shares during the 2019 Financial Year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the 2019 Financial Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 71.4% of the Group's total sales and sales to the Group's largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 43.2%. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 54.5% of the Group's total
purchases and purchase from the Group'’s largest supplier included therein amounted
to approximately 37.3%.

Except as disclosed below, none of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors had owned more than
5% of the Company's issued Shares) had any interests in the Group's five largest
customers or suppliers noted above:-

Toray, a substantial shareholder of the Company, accounted for approximately 3.2%
of the Group’s total purchases. The purchase from Toray constituted continuing
connected transactions, details of which are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and consolidated balance sheet of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 158 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The list of Directors during the 2019 Financial Year was as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TOU Kit Vai (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Toshiya ISHII

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung (resigned on 12 June 2019)

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong (re-designated as Non-executive Director
with effect from 1 June 2019)

Mr. TSANG Kang Po (resigned with effect from 1 July 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Note: Mr. Masaru Okutomi was appointed as executive Director and Vice Chairman and
shall take effect on 1 July 2019.

Pursuant to article 130 of the Articles, at every AGM one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Accordingly, Mr. Wan Wai Loi, Mr. Lau Yiu Tong and Mr. Ng Ching Wah will retire by
rotation from the Board at the forthcoming AGM and will, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election as Directors.

Pursuant to article 114 of the Articles, the Board shall have the power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting.

Accordingly, Mr. Masaru Okutomi, appointed as executive Director effective from 1
July 2019, will hold office until the forthcoming AGM and being eligible, has offered
himself for re-election as Director.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 14 to 16 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial term of two years, renewable thereafter until terminated by
either party by giving at least six months’ prior notice to another party in writing.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors had
been appointed for a term of two years and are renewable thereafter.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles and
the Listing Rules.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM had a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed and determined by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of each Director's experience, responsibility and the time
commitment to the business of the Group.

Details of emoluments of every Director for the 2019 Financial Year are set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS” MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement, or contract of significance in relation to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his or her connected entity had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during or at the end of the 2019 Financial Year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors had, either directly or indirectly, an interest in a business which
caused or might cause any significant competition with the business of the Group and
any other conflicts of interest which any such person had or might had with the Group
during the year under review.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors were not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders of the Company by reason of their holdings of the Shares.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the 2019 Financial Year was the Company, its holding companies, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto.
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DIRECTORS INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executives (Note 1) of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (Note 1) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES
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DIRECTORS” INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont’d)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont’d)

Notes:

1. Within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

2. The Shares are held by Ms. Chiu Bo Lan, the spouse of Mr. Wan Wai Loi.

3. Mr. Tsang Sian-Chung, Hubert is the Chief Information Officer of the Company who was
granted share options of the Company. A summary of Share Option Scheme is set out
on pages 29 to 31 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, no Directors nor chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

At no time during the year under review were the rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in the Company granted to any Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, the following persons (other than a Director or chief executive
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:-
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)
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Approximate

percentage
of issued
Capacity in which ordinary Number of share capital
shares were held ordinary shares of the Company
RAERQEE BT
RIFBEER 2S5 EBERHEE BREZHBOBEISLL
Toray Beneficial Owner 405,394,000 (L) 28.03%
EmERA
Schroders Plc Investment Manager 124,909,000 (L) 8.64%
RERKE
Lam Wing Tak Beneficial Owner 14,566,000 (L)
MR BEREAA
Interest of Spouse 1,087,000 (L)
foiB s
Founder of a discretionary trust 80,000,000 (L)
EREFTZEPA
95,653,000 6.61%
(Note 4)
(Fft3E4)
Wong Bik Ha Beneficial Owner 1,087,000 (L)
BEE EmER A
Interest of Spouse 14,566,000 (L)
e {8
Founder of a discretionary trust 80,000,000 (L)
2REGEFEZEIHA
95,653,000 6.61%
(Note 4)
(Bt &E4)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont’d)

= Rk

TS\?' DICHE]
R

RS

W S

#

<t
S
EH—E_\

—\
A
S|
—

AT RBRONEBRS 2

Approximate

percentage
of issued
Capacity in which ordinary Number of share capital
shares were held ordinary shares of the Company
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REERRZS 6 EERBE RAZBOBEIL
HSBC International Trustee Limited Trustee 80,520,000 5.57%
(Note 4)
BEFEA (B 5E4)
BLWT Company Limited Interest in controlled corporations 80,000,000 5.53%
(Note 4)
R EE R (B 354)
Fifth Element Enterprises Limited Beneficial Owner 80,000,000 5.53%
(Note 5)
EnfEA A (Fft=Es)
Notes: Ff 5T -
4. Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the spouse of Ms. Wong Bik Ha, vice versa. BLWT Company Limited 4. MEEEEREEELLTEH REM -
is wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited, the trustee of the family trust of HSBC International Trustee Limited &M &&
Mr. Lam Wing Tak. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the founder of the BREZRIEETZETLIA  2EHEB
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of Shareholders passed on 27 April 2007, the
Company adopted the Share Option Scheme subject to the terms and conditions

therein.

Options enabling the exercise of 22,820,000 Shares were granted on 18 July 2007
("Tst Grant”) and expired on 17 July 2017. Options enabling the exercise of 10,000,000
Shares were granted on 11 October 2013 (“2nd Grant”) will expire on 10 October 2023.
The closing price of the share of the Company immediately before the dates of the 1st
Grant and the 2nd Grant were HK$4.86 and HK$10.06 per share respectively.

A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

1.

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company
with a flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to eligible participants (as defined in
paragraph 2 below).

Participants

The Board may grant options to any eligible participants, namely an employee,
Director or Non-executive Director (including INED) of any Member of the
Group.

"Member of the Group” means the Company, any holding company,
subsidiaries or affiliates of the Company or other companies or associated
companies of the Company which the Board determines will be subject to the
Share Option Scheme.

Maximum number of Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of Listing
of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on 18 May 2007 (the “Listing Date”),
representing 143,293,600 Shares or 30% of the Shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd) BREsE ()
A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d) A BRETTEHSE(HF)
4. Maximum entitlement of each participant 4. BESHEEVERER LR
The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the fEEMIEAHE  BAERL2HE
options granted to each eligible participant (including exercised and THEER 2 ERE(BEETE XM
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the RITR 2 AR ) T 2 &5l T 31T
Shares in issue at the date of grant of the options. ZHRHBEE  TEREEREREY
HE#TRNZ21% -
5. Time of exercise of options and duration of Share Option Scheme 5. TEBREZRERBRENEZE
M
(a) General vesting period (a) —REBEH
The general vesting period for options granted under the Share Option RIEE R SR L AR E 2 —
Scheme is 5 anniversary of grant date unless the Board specifies a different REBH AR HBSET - BRIE
vesting period under the terms of the offer. The option period will not be BEERBEBER T ZEHRIERAS —
more than 10 years from the date of grant. HEH - EREARETEEB

B B HRRFT104F -

An option may be exercised to the extent that it has vested and any B EE D REREE R ESUTM
performance conditions or targets set by the Board have been met. HEERETZRRGHXEE
RRIT o
(b) Duration of the Share Option Scheme (b) FERIEEZ.Z BIR
The duration of the Share Option Scheme shall be 10 years from the BT S 2 BIR /& £ A HI
Listing Date. FT10%F ©
6. Exercise price and payment on grant 6. THERBEEMNRK
(a) Exercise price (a) 7T1Z1E
The exercise price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall BREET BB T 2 RMITEER
be the price determined by the Board and notified to the option holder E‘ﬂé$%}ﬁ)€1 MEBRERE
which shall not be less than the highest of: CEZEBERIBERAATERIE
Zﬁm%-
(i) the average closing price of the Shares for the five business days () BEERERL RS RER
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option as stated in the ¥ ARBH R TE B RERAN
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets; AR 2 FEH U E
(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated on the Stock Exchange's daily (i) Fﬁﬁﬂx%?“ﬁj A EAARIREE 2 P
quotations sheet of the Shares on the date of grant of the option; and FHBRERMRERD 2T
B R
(iii) the nominal value of the Shares. (i) Bxfn 2 E1E °
(b) Payment on grant (b) M B 1750
Eligible Persons are not required to pay for the acceptance of an option EERATHEREMR RS
granted to them. 2 BB AR R PR A 5K o
7. Life of the Share Option Scheme 7. BRESTEENE
The Share Option Scheme was terminated automatically at midnight on the B EA SN EE EmEHFEI10AF
day immediately before the 10th anniversary of the Listing Date, in other EmEAR—BEREBEBKIL B
words, the Share Option Scheme was terminated as at 17 May 2017. FZ BREFEIER2017F5817
HARIE o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
B. OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY
The share options issued under 1st Grant were fully exercised. The movement of

BhRE:E (&)
5. #aAERZRES
—REE B EEEE S

2nd Grant as at 31 March 2019 was as follows: 1% o FA2019F3A31H » E_AKREME
EIIRMAT :
Percentage  Number
Number of oftotal ~of Share
Share Share  Options
Exercise  Options Vesting Options ~ Vested/to Exercisable Asat Asat
Dateof Grant  Grantee Price Granted  Tranche  Date Granted  beVested Period 01/04/2018  Exercised Lapsed  Forfeited 31/03/2019
HERH
BRE GCBE/ R )iy
BRLE agh  HRER 20185 20195
REHR #R 5EES BAl  REHE R 4A1A R 3B31A
1171012013 Eligible Employees HKS9.98 10,000,000 15t 1111012016 30% 3000000 11/10/2016- 9,050,000 - - - 9050000
SABEE  9wET i 10/10/2023
2nd 1111012019 35% 3500000 11/10/2019-
£ 10/10/2023
3rd 1111012022 35% 3500000 11/10/2022-
£ 10/10/2023

The fair value of options of the 2nd Grant is approximately at an average of
HK$1.85 per Share on the basis of binomial model (the “Model”). The significant
inputs into the Model were the closing price of the Share of the Company at the
date of grant of HK$9.98 per Share, annual risk-free interest rate of approximately
2.09%, an expected option life of approximate 10 years, expected volatility of
45% and annual dividend yield of 9%. HK$1,695,000 amortised fair value of share
options for the 2019 Financial Year was charged to the consolidated income
statement (2018: HK$1,696,000).

The Model was developed for use in estimating fair value of traded options that
are fully transferable. The Model requires input of highly subjective assumptions,
including the expected stock price volatility. Since the Company’s share options
have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and
because change in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair
value estimate, the Model does not necessarily provide a reliable measure of the
fair value of the share options.

Save as disclosed below, no option had been granted to the Directors, chief
executives or substantial shareholders of the Company or their respective
associates under the Share Option Scheme:

450,000 options were granted to Mr. Tsang Sian-Chung, Hubert, an employee who
is also an associate of Mr. Tsang Kang Po, a non-executive Director of the Company
who resigned with effect from 1 July 2018.
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MEETE - R2019FMBEE + 1,695,000
BITEREZEHEE AR BEEREA R
R A AR (20184 : 1,696,000/87T) °
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements also constituted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

During the 2019 Financial Year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions, which were subject to reporting, and announcement requirements but
are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A.33 of the Listing Rules:

(1) SALE AND PURCHASE OF KNITTED FABRIC TO CRYSTAL GROUP

During the 2019 Financial Year, the Group conducted business pursuant to an
agreement dated 29 March 2018 in relation to the sale and purchase of knitted
fabric manufactured and owned by the Group to Crystal International Group
Limited (“Crystal” together with its subsidiaries, referred to as “Crystal Group”) with
its term up to 31 March 2021 (“Crystal Group Sale and Purchase of knitted Fabric
New Master Agreement”). The annual cap for each of the three years ended 31
March 2019, ending 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021 shall be HK$2,000 million.
Details of the Crystal Group Sale and Purchase of knitted Fabric New Master
Agreement were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 29 March 2018.

During the 2019 Financial Year, the total transaction amount between Crystal
Group and the Group was approximately HK$1,109 million which was within the
relevant annual cap.

According to the Listing Rules, by virtue of its shareholding in PCGT Limited, an
indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Crystal is a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) and hence a connected person of
the Company at the subsidiary level. Crystal Group is therefore also regarded as
connected person of the Company.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the transactions were
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(i) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair

and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Group as a
whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(1) SALE AND PURCHASE OF KNITTED FABRIC TO CRYSTAL GROUP (Cont’d)

(2

—

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"), was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. PwC had issued an unqualified letter containing findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter was provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

SALE OF YARNS BY TORAY TO THE GROUP

During the 2019 Financial Year, the Group conducted business pursuant to an
agreement dated 28 July 2017 in relation to sale of yarns by manufactured or
owned by Toray Industries, Inc. (“Toray”, together with its subsidiaries, “Toray
Group”) to the Group for a period ending 31 March 2020. The annual cap for each
of the three years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 and ending 31 March
2020 shall be HK$230 million.

According to the Listing Rules, Toray is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and hence a connected person of the Company. Toray Group is therefore also
regarded as connected person of the Company.

During the 2019 Financial Year, the total transaction amount between Toray Group
and the Group was approximately HK$116 million which was within the annual
cap.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the transactions were
entered into:

(i)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(iii) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair

and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Group as a
whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(2) SALE OF YARNS BY TORAY TO THE GROUP (Cont’d)

(3

—

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s external auditor,
PwC, was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Pwc had issued an
unqualified letter containing findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter was provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

SALE OF FABRICS BY THE GROUP TO TORAY GROUP

During the 2019 Financial Year, the Group conducted business pursuant to an
agreement dated 27 February 2019 in relation to sale of fabrics by the Group to
Toray Group for a term of three financial years. The annual cap for each of the
three financial years ending 31 March 2021 shall be HK$100 million.

According to the Listing Rules, Toray is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and hence a connected person of the Company. Toray Group is therefore also
regarded as connected person of the Company.

During the 2019 Financial Year, the total transaction amount between Toray Group
and the Group was approximately HK$17 million which was within the annual cap.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the transactions were
entered into:

(i)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Group as a
whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s external auditor,
PwC, was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. PwC had issued an
unqualified letter containing findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter was provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing,
Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching Wah and Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (who are Independent
Non-executive Directors). Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, a Fellow of CPA Australia, is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the financial statements of the Group for the 2019
Financial Year and discussed with the management and the auditor of the Company
on the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and internal
controls and financial reporting matters.

Pursuant to the recent development of CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, an amended and restated terms of reference for Audit Committee was
effective from 1 January 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 36 to 50 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Discussion on the Group's environmental policies and performance, relationships with
its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group will be provided in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report which will be published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange no later than three months after the publication of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, there was sufficient public float of more than 25% of the issued shares
of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the 2019 Financial Year have been audited
by PwC. A resolution to re-appoint PwC as auditor of the Company will be proposed
for approval by the Shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

WAN Wai Loi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 June 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

The Board is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate governance
to enhance transparency and accountability and to safeguard the interests of
Shareholders of the Company. The Group reviews corporate governance practices
from time to time to ensure that business activities and decision making processes are
properly regulated.

A. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE OF THE COMPANY

The Company complied with the applicable code provisions and certain
recommended best practices set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules where suitable to the Company so as to enhance the corporate
governance standard of the Company throughout the 2019 Financial Year.

Mr. Wan Wai Loi had served as the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company during the year, hence the Company did not comply with the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which requires that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. While the dual role arrangement has provided strong and consistent
leadership and facilitated the implementation of the Group's business strategies,
the Company will nevertheless review the structure from time to time in light of
the prevailing circumstance.

B. THEBOARD

1. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company, the
Board is responsible for formulation of strategic, management and financial
objectives of the Group and ensuring that Shareholders’ interests are
protected. Daily operations and administration of the Group are delegated
to the Executive Directors and the management. The Board has established
Board committees and has delegated various responsibilities to these
committees as set out in their respective terms of reference. All relevant terms
of reference are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of
the responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the business
and operating activities and development of the Group. Every Director is
committed to devoting sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of the
Board and material matters of the Company and serving the Board with such
degree of care and due diligence given his own expertise, qualification and
professionalism.

Executive Directors are responsible for managing different aspects or functions
of the business of the Group. The Non-executive Directors advise on business
strategies of the Group and review its financial and operational performance.
The INEDs serve the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee and provide independent reviews on the issues of
strategic direction, development, performance and risk management of the
Group.
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B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)

Us

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD (Cont’d) 1
All Directors had been updated and briefed relevant changes in legal and
regulatory matters to ensure that they had a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Group and that they were fully aware of their
responsibilities under applicable laws and regulations.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTION 2.

The Board is responsible for making all major decisions of the Company,
including approving and monitoring all major policies, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control, risk management framework, significant
financial and operational matters as well as nomination of directors. The
day-to-day management and operation of the Company are delegated to the
management team of the Company under the supervision of the Executive
Directors. The Executive Directors normally meet on an informal basis and
participate in senior management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast
of the latest operations and performance of the Group and to monitor and
ensure the management carrying out all directions and strategies set by the
Board appropriately.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 3.

Profiles of current Directors are set out on pages 14 to 16 of this annual report
and are available on the website of the Company. The list of Directors during
the 2019 Financial Year was as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TOU Kit Vai (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Toshiya ISHII

Non-executive Director

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung (resigned on 12 June 2019)

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong (re-designated as Non-executive Director
with effect from 1 June 2019)

Mr. TSANG Kang Po (resigned with effect from 1 July 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Note:  Mr. Masaru Okutomi was appointed as executive Director and Vice
Chairman and shall take effect on 1 July 2019.

There is no financial, business, family or other material relationships among
the Directors. The list of Directors and their roles and functions are published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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B. THE BOARD (Cont'd) b EER(8)

3. COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Cont’d) 3. EERZAR (H)

The composition of the Board is well-balanced with the Directors having
sales and marketing experience and technical knowledge in textiles business,
administrative and managerial experience in PRC factories and financial
and accounting skill. Taking into account the nature and scope of business
operations and development of the Group, such balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives is appropriate for effective decision making. The
Board considers that the Non-executive Director and each of the INEDs bring
their own relevant expertise to the Board.

As permitted under the Articles, the Company has arranged Directors and
Officers Liability Insurance in respect of any legal actions which may be taken
against Directors and management in execution and discharge of their duties
or in relation thereto.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Articles to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional member of the Board.
Suitable candidates who are experienced and competent and able to fulfil
fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and diligence would be recommended
to the Board.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as a Director at
the AGM, the Shareholder can deposit a written notice to that effect at the
registered office of the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary.
Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a director are
published on the website of the Company.

Each of the Executive Directors was appointed for an initial term of two years
and each service agreement is renewable thereafter until terminated by either
party by giving to the other party at least six months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors
had been appointed for a term of two years and are renewable thereafter.
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B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)

4. APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for
re-election pursuant to the Articles. Pursuant to the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board shall hold office only until the next following AGM and then be
eligible for re-election at that AGM. In addition, at every AGM, one-third
of the Directors, including the chairman, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by Shareholders at least once every three years.
The Directors appointed by the Board who are subject to retirement and
re-election as mentioned above shall be taken into account in calculating
the total number of Directors for the time being but shall not be taken into
account in calculating the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation.
All Directors eligible for re-election shall have their biographical details made
available to Shareholders to enable them to make an informed decision on
their re-election.

Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-designation of Director
shall be timely disclosed to Shareholders by announcement. Any reasons
for resignation given by the Director shall also be included in such
announcement.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director had been provided with comprehensive and
tailored induction of business operation of the Group, including a site visit of
our factory in China on the first occasion of his appointment.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
from time to time updates the Directors on the latest development on the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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5. INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS 5 EEZABNAREERE ()
(Cont’d)
According to the training records provided by the Directors, a summary of RIEE EATIRENEIREE - 2019
which during the 2019 Financial Year is as follows: FHHFERENENRERENT

Topics on training covered
55 3 P 2 Y R

Corporate Listing Rules and Risk and financial

governance regulatory updates management

TEER EHRARERER Bk 7B ER

Executive Directors YTE=S

Mr. WAN Wai Lo FEREE B B B

Mr. TOU Kit Vai AR EE B B B

Mr. Toshiya ISHII RFBEREE B B B

Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung ERREs B B -
(resigned on 12 June 2019) (R2019%6 4128 B F)

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong FIRERE B B B
(re-designated as Non-executive Director (6201964 1H &5
with effect from 1 June 2019) HHTEE)

Mr. TSANG Kang Po BRI EE = - -
(resigned with effect from 1 July 2018) (B2018%7A1H 8 F)

Independent Non-executive Directors BIEHTES

Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael WM EL A B AB AB
Mr. NG Ching Wah MRELE

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel HEB 58 5 & B B B
Type of trainings b=l [fs]l

A. Attending briefings, seminars, webinar or training courses A Z2NENE - BRe - BEHse

FHIFDIRTE

B. Reading materials B. BIEEH
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B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)

6. THE BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

NUMBER OF MEETINGS

The Board met at least 4 times per year and additional meetings are convened
when deemed necessary by the Board. The schedule of regular meetings for
the whole year had been informed to each Director. The attendance record of
the Directors is set out on page 42 of this annual report.

During the 2019 Financial Year, the Board held 4 meetings to approve interim
and final results announcements, interim report and annual report, to consider
dividend policy, to discuss significant issues and general operation of the
Company.

The Company held the AGM on 9 August 2018. All proposed Shareholders’
resolutions put forwarded were resolved by poll and were duly passed. The
poll result of each resolution was set out in the Company’s announcement
released on the even date.

PRACTICE AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

Notice of Board meeting will be served to all Directors at least 14 days before
the meeting. Notices and agenda of the Board meeting are prepared by the
Company Secretary as delegated by the chairman. All Directors are given the
opportunity to include any matters which they believe to be appropriate in
the agenda of the Board meetings.

Agenda and relevant information of Board meeting with adequate
background information and supporting analysis are made available to the
Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of the Board meeting. All
Directors are given separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management for further information and enquiries. The Company Secretary
and relevant senior management members attend all the meetings of the
Board and Board committees to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance and financial matters.

Any material matters that would have conflict of interest between the
Directors or substantial Shareholders and the Company will be dealt with in
the Board meeting. Pursuant to the Articles, a Director is not entitled to vote
on (nor is counted in the quorum) any resolution of the Board in respect of
any contract or arrangement or any other proposal whatsoever in which he or
any of his associates (including any person who would be deemed to be an
“associate” of the Directors under the Listing Rules) has any material interest
except in certain special circumstances. The chairman of the Board meeting
is required to ensure that each Director is aware of such requirement at the
commencement of each Board meeting and declaration of interest is properly
made in the Board meeting where conflicts of interest arise.
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6. THE BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Cont’d) 6. EEREERREAE (H)

PRACTICE AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS (Cont’d)

Directors have access to advice and services of the Company Secretary and
key officers of the Company in relation to the Board procedures. Draft minutes
of the Board or Board committee meetings recorded in sufficient details,
the matters considered by the participants of those meetings and decisions
reached are forwarded to the participants for comments within a reasonable
time after the meetings and final versions of minutes of Board or Board
committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary, which are open for
inspection by any Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.

Board members are provided with complete, adequate and timely information
to allow the Directors to fulfil their duties properly. Directors may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses with the
approval of the Board, if necessary.

ERFARER ()
EEARERARRARARWEMTIE
BERHEBESREFNERMR
B-BERIEETZESTREER
HALSZEER2EEMERENE
BNGEBHORE AR EHRENEE
FRANXZEEZERTHRIERER
R -BEXERIEBETZEEERLKE
REFERARDNMETE - £fES
RAERHEA  BHAEBMRATE
BB -

EERAHEKBRATE - EE Rk
FoER  NEEREMGEMRET
HBE BEFWNEFER  REIE
ERIAER  ISRKBUEXER -

ERBARESN -

ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS

The attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the Board, the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
AGM during the 2019 Financial Year are set out as follows:

HESEEER
BEEM01FMRFERRLFE
=R -EZZBe FWZEE &
FEEESHRNMBERBFRAE 2L
I

Meetings attended/Meetings held
HEEERE BTEERY

Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee AGM
EREER FMEER EEZEE® RREEAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairmanand ~ FER %4 4/4 N/ATRiE F 1/1 /1 1/1
Chief Executive Officer) (FEFITHAEZ)
Mr. TOU Kit Vai (Chief Financial &5 5% & (& BB 7 4/4 N/ATNE A N/ATNE N/ATNE A 11
Officer) HE)
Mr. Toshiya ISHII BHERLE 4/4 N/ATNE A N/ATNE A N/ATRE A 1/1
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung EEgdad 24 N/AT i F N/ATiE FB N/ATE P 11
(resigned on 12 June 2019) (R2019F
6A12A ()
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong (re-designated as 2125 % 4 4/4 N/ATiE 1/1 1/1 0/1
Non-executive Director with effect (52019651 H#
from 1 June 2019) FIEBHHTEE)
Mr. TSANG Kang Po BERLE 11 N/AT i F N/AT i FB N/ATiE P N/AT &
(resigned with effect from 1 July — (£12018%F
2018) 7H18&E)
INEDs BUEHTES
Dr.CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael ~ FR#A B+ 3/4 4/4 01 0/1 1/1
Mr. NG Ching Wah mEELE 4/4 474 N 11 1/1
Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel HE B 5 5% A 4/4 3/4 1/1 1/1 1N
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B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)

7. INEDS
The Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least one INED possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise throughout the 2019 Financial Year.

As at 31 March 2019, the Board comprised eight members with three INEDs.
The number of INEDs met the minimum requirement prescribed under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules.

C. CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

The Chairman of the Board provides leadership for the Board and is responsible
for chairing the meetings, managing the operations of the Board and ensuring
that all matters submitted for discussion are discussed by the Board in a timely
and orderly manner. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for leading the
management team and overseeing the operations for the Group.

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are Mr. Wan Wai Loi,
hence the Company did not comply with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code
which requires that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

For the previous years, Mr. Wan has provided the Company with strong and
consistent leadership and facilitated the implementation of the Group’s business
strategies in an efficient manner. The Company will nevertheless review the
structure from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstance.

With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures that all
Directors were properly briefed on the issues arising at the Board meetings and
provided with adequate information in a timely manner.

The Company received an annual written confirmation from each of the INEDs
of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considered
them to be independence of the management and free of any relationship that
could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgements.
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D. BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three main Board Committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, each
chaired by different INED, to assist the Board in overseeing particular aspects of
the Company'’s affairs. Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions
and recommendations at the Board meetings.

The terms of reference (as revised) setting out the principles, procedures and
arrangements of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee have been reviewed by the Board with reference to
the CG Code and are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are reviewing, overseeing and supervising the effectiveness of the
Group's financial reporting process, risk management and internal control systems.

The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching
Wah and Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael. All of them are INEDs. Mr. Sze Kwok Wing,
Nigel, a Fellow of CPA Australia, is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited annual consolidated financial
information of the Group for the 2019 Financial Year and the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group with the management in conjunction with
the auditor. The Annual Report for the 2019 Financial Year has been reviewed by
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during 2019 Financial Year. The major
work performed by the Audit Committee in respect of the 2019 Financial Year
included approving the terms of engagement (including the remuneration) of
the external auditor; reviewing the unaudited interim financial information and
interim results announcement for the six months ended 30 September 2018;
reviewing the audited annual consolidated financial information and final results
announcement for the 2019 Financial Year; reviewing the work of the Group's
internal audit department; assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s systems
of risk management and internal control and reviewing the effectiveness of the
whistleblowing policy and the incidents reported through such channel. The
attendance of the Directors for the Audit Committee meetings is set out in the
table on page 42 of this annual report.
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D. BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The Audit Committee has reviewed the scope and results of the audit and its cost
effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the Company’s external
auditor.

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the Company'’s
external auditor during the years under review (and the previous year) are as
follows:

Audit Services EIZRTE
Non-audit Services FEF X AR
— Tax consultation services — BT A RS AR S

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all non-audit services provided
by the Company’s external auditor and concluded that such services did not affect
the independence of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee recommended the Board about re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for the ensuing year
and the related resolutions shall be put forth in the forthcoming AGM.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of
the Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on appointment of Directors with due regard to diversity of the Board and
management of the Board succession.

The majority members of the Nomination Committee are INEDs. As at the date of
the report, the members of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Ng Ching Wah; Dr.
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel and Mr. Wan Wai Loi. Mr. Ng
Ching Wah, an INED, is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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D. BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd) ). EEREEE(E)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The Nomination Committee met once during the 2019 Financial Year and
reviewed the implementation of the board diversity policy (“the Policy”). The
Policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. In reviewing
and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee will consider
a number of factors, including but not limited to educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, industry experience, age, gender and ethnic
origin, subject to the actual situation of the Company and relevant provisions
under the applicable laws. Restrictions like age, gender and ethnic origin will
not be set when short-listing the candidates. The major work performed by the
Nomination Committee in respect of the 2019 Financial Year included assessing
the independence of the INEDs and making recommendations in line with the
Policy on re-election of the Directors of the Company to be subject to rotation
requirements at the forthcoming AGM (including the new director(s) appointed by
the Board who is subject to re-election requirement under rule 114 of the Articles.
The attendance of the Directors for the Nomination Committee meeting is set out
in the table on page 42 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to review and determine the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to Directors and senior
management of the Group with reference to the nature of their works, complexity
of their responsibilities and performances and to make recommendations to
the Board. No director is allowed to take part in any discussion about his own
remuneration.

The majority members of the Remuneration Committee are INEDs. As at the
date of report, the members of the Remuneration Committee are Dr. Chan Yue
Kwong, Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching Wah and Mr. Wan Wai
Loi. Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, an INED, is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the 2019 Financial Year. The major
work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the 2019 Financial Year
included reviewing the remunerations of the Directors and senior management
with reference to the remuneration levels of directors and senior management
of comparable listed companies. The attendance of the Directors for the
Remuneration Committee meeting is set out in the table on page 42 of this annual
report.

Details of the remunerations of the Directors disclosed pursuant to Section 161
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. Executive Directors’
remunerations shall from time to time be determined by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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E. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board should be responsible for performing corporate governance duties as
follows:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Sau Yee was appointed as Company Secretary on 23 November 2017
being a full-time employee of the Company to report directly to the Board. The
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure the Board procedures, and all applicable law, rules and regulations, are
followed. During the 2019 Financial Year, the Company Secretary complied
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

. DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the standard of Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, all current Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out in such
Code throughout the 2019 Financial Year.
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H. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledged its responsibility for preparing the Company’s financial
statements for 2019 Financial Year which gave a true and fair view of financial
position of the Group and in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Company's interim report and annual report
were prepared and published in accordance with statutory requirements and
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards in a timely manner required under the
Listing Rules. Directors were provided with adequate information to enable them
to make an informed assessment of financial and other information on matters for
their approval. Furthermore, Directors were provided with monthly updates on the
Group's performance to enable them to discharge their duties.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company regarding its reporting
responsibility to Shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 51 to 57 of this
annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has established risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard shareholders’ investment and assets of the Group. The Board
acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. From time to time and at least annually, the Board, through
the Audit Committee, reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group in order to ensure that they meet with the
ever changing business environment as well as the requirements under the Listing
Rules. To enhance the objectiveness and credibility of the review, an independent
consultancy firm has been engaged to periodically conduct the appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board, assisted by the Audit
Committee, assessed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group by reviewing the investigation results of management
report and internal audits, and considered that the risk management and internal
control system of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 was effective and
adequate.

The Group has in place the sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and assets of the Group. The Company has from time to
time reviewed effectiveness of internal control systems and adopts corresponding
measures. Certain management committees were set up to set policies and
monitor potential internal control weakness in order to ensure that they meet with
the dynamic and ever changing business environment.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (Cont'd)

During the 2019 Financial Year, the Board has reviewed effectiveness of
the Group's internal control systems, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions, adequacy of resources,
training programmes, budget, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, through the Internal
Audit Department and the Audit Committee with assistance of an international
independent risk consulting firm.

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy and system which enables
employees to raise concern, in confidence, about the possible improprieties in any
matter relating to the Company, reported case will be assessed with due care, with
top management oversight and for valid compliant, appropriate action will be
taken to address the concern.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of continuing communications with
Shareholders and strives to ensure timeliness, completeness and accuracy
of information disclosure to Shareholders and to protect the interests of
Shareholders.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy and reviews it
on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. As a channel to further promote
effective communication, the Group maintains a website allowing Shareholders
to access updates on the Company’s particulars where the Company’s
announcements, financial information, shareholders’ communication policy and
other information are posted.

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with Shareholders through general
meeting of the Company to communicate with Shareholders. The chairman of the
Board, the representative of each committee and the external auditor attend the
general meeting to answer any questions from Shareholders. A separate resolution
shall be proposed at general meeting on each substantially separate issue. A
Shareholder is permitted to appoint any number of proxies to attend and vote in
his stead.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website, www.
pacific-textiles.com. where information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access.
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K. SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
Any two or more shareholders or any one shareholder which is a recognised
clearing house (or its nominee(s)), holding not less than one- tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company may, in accordance with requirements and procedures
set out in the Articles of the Company, make a written requisition to the Board
to convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company and put forward
proposals at the meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the
written requisition which must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to put forward new resolutions
at general meetings under Cayman Islands law or the Articles of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a resolution may request the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting in accordance with procedures set out
above.

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

Notice of all general meetings shall be sent to Shareholders in accordance
with the Articles and the requirements of Listing Rules. Notice for AGM and all
other general meetings shall be sent at least 20 clear business days and 10 clear
business days prior to the meeting respectively.

VOTING BY POLL

At any general meetings, the chairman may exercise his power under the Articles
to put each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way of poll, explain
detailed procedures for conducting a poll and answer any questions from
Shareholders on voting by poll. The results of the poll, if any, will be published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

PROCEDURES FOR RAISING ENQUIRIES

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’'s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited (Address: 17M/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong and Telephone: (852) 2862 8555).

Shareholders who have any questions for the Board may send written enquiries
together with their detailed contact information, such as postal address or e-mail
address, by post to the Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or by
e-mail to ir@pacific-textiles.com.

The Board also encourages Shareholders to attend general meetings to make
enquiries directly.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles is published on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively. During the 2019 Financial Year, there was no change to the Articles of the
Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

T0 THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PACIFIC TEXTILES HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the
"Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to 157, which
comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2019;

the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of
significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BUGHERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
We considered “Revenue recognition” as a key audit matter that was addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this

matter.

Key Audit Matter

BMEESNER
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN FT MAEEERETEE

Revenue Recognition

LON::

Refer to note 2.22 for the Group’s accounting policies on revenue
recognition and note 5 for the analysis of revenue from sales of
goods for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Bl ESERAOHBRABRINEBER - B20HME222 -
BEEZE2019F3A31 B IEFEHEEmAFRANSIT - F2
BB EES -

Revenue from sales of goods for the year ended 31 March 2019
amounted to HK$6,119,081,000. The Group has operations in
several geographical locations, and derives revenue from sales to
multiple customers.

HZE2019F3A31HILFEHEE MM B6,119,081,000%
Lo EBEEERZMEAMECEER THZEARTFHENSGK
)\ o

Revenue is recognised when the control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customers, the customers have full discretion over the price to
sell the products and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customers’ acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs
when the products have been shipped to the specified location
and the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customers.

EEMNEHZERERR (AIRNVERTEFK) MEP
HHEEmWERERRENISE  BVEARZETFER
EmNARBHAERGE X BEEEBRIAWA BERMEEET
WE - AREMBELAREEBZZFE - AEERM -

We understood, evaluated and tested management'’s key internal
controls that are present in the Group’s sales process from
end-to-end.

BMETHE  HERBRIEEEY
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BEREHERETRSR

We tested samples of sales transactions against sales orders,
shipping documents, invoices and other supporting documents.
To the extent that those sales have been settled, we also
reviewed bank remittance advices and/or bank statements in
support of the payments made by the customers.

BMEEHHER B - RESE - BRNHMFHME 5
ERXRFELMEAR - WMZEHERLEE - RMTEEMIE
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Furthermore, we tested sales transactions that took place shortly
before and after the balance sheet date to assess whether sales
transactions were recognised in the correct reporting periods.

AN RACREREREERBERABAKREENHEER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key Audit Matter
HEEEtEE

Revenue Recognition

LON: 4

We focused on this area due to the large volume of revenue
transactions derived from sales to multiple customers in different
geographical locations such that we have incurred significant time
and resources in carrying out our work in this area.
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HEESE (H)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAENETNAEERRENSIE

Our work also included testing of a sample of revenue-related
journal entries by inquiring management of their nature and
inspecting the relevant supporting documents.

BMOIERRERAAMEEERF1LEE REMHEM[ X
S S U A AR RE B S BV R AT TR o

We found that the Groups' sales transactions being tested were
recognised in a manner consistent with the Group's accounting
policy for revenue recognition.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BURHERE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BURHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BAGAERE

AR Ty
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED B AT L T SRS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 3 Y
From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those f
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We desgr-ibg
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determ
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh q P
interest benefits of such communication. o

1
23] | oY

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent audito‘_r_s
Leung Po Wah, Pauline.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 June 2019




FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 March 2019

4= A
nVT =

HE2019F3A31HILFE

2019 2018

2019 20184

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Revenue WA 5 6,119,081 6,098,153

Cost of sales SHE A 23 (5,058,180) (5,150,991)

Gross profit ER 1,060,901 947,162
Other income and other gains/(losses) — net HiUg A R E MU (EE) 22

— 5 183,223 116,131

Impairment loss on trade receivables F’ELBZEE RN T (2,722) -

Distribution and selling expenses AR HER X 23 (65,864) (94,178)

General and administrative expenses — e RITEH R X 23 (191,996) (142,250)

Operating profit LERA 983,542 826,865

Finance income B UL A 25 11,673 8,583

Finance costs B 76 B AN 25 (14,166) (16,921)

Share of profits of associates DAG B E QR 2 i A 9 34,738 34,520

Gain on disposal of certain interest in HE—HBERARETHERZ
an associate g 2% 9 - 396

Profit before income tax P8 Bt Al R 1,015,787 853,443
Income tax expense S & F 2 26 (145,528) (130,101)
Profit for the year FERF 870,259 723,342

Profit attributable to: THA LM SRR -

Equity holders of the Company AAREZFAA 861,780 744,035
Non-controlling interests FEFE B MR = 8,479 (20,693)
870,259 723,342

Earnings per share attributable to equity FARDNRIEZFEA

holders of the Company for the year e B RR & F

(expressed in HKS per share) (AFRAETTHIR)

- basic — &K 27 0.60 0.51

— diluted — 27 0.60 0.51

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial — EEMf 2 MfisE Ty it H 42 A BT ISR T Al sk 2
statements. B e
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEBER
For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE2019F3A318 IEFE
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Profit for the year FERF 870,259 723,342
Other comprehensive income: Hh 2 mEKA :
Items that have been or may be reclassified to profit or loss: F B( AJpE E# # FB 2 182 By IE A -

Currency translation differences SNEE I R (212,734) 252,605
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZXEBAEE 657,525 975,947
Attributable to: A AT A

Equity holders of the Company AARIERFR A 650,781 995,943

Non-controlling interests FEFE M = 6,744 (19,996)

657,525 975,947

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial  BEM 2 M5t Tyt 4R A B ISRk DAl sk 2
statements. 284 o
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHEn

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET GRBEBER
As at 31 March 2019 201953 H31H

2018
2019 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Land use rights + 3 {5 A A 6 115,321 48,323
Property, plant and equipment Y= BB MR 7 1,520,210 1,562,062
Interests in associates KB E R A 2 9 320,572 313,011
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ETHEE 10 - 853
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEAEMEEUYA 10
other comprehensive income MR EE 853 -
Deferred income tax assets RIS & E 19 15,843 9,487
Prepayments for land use rights and T AR - BB KR 13
property, plant and equipment % AF Y TE S ROR 28,497 112,636
2,001,296 2,046,372
Current assets RENEE
Inventories T8 11 947,353 1,068,184
Trade and bills receivables JE UG BR 3k &% =R 12 735,882 916,500
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables Ze  BIREREAM 13
JE W FRIE 63,676 78,467
Amounts due from associates FE Y Hek & R B RIR 9 52,799 49,092
Derivative financial instruments PTESRmIA 14 8,339 16,284
Current income tax recoverable A] Yz (=] B B AT 15 7 - 11,110
Short-term bank deposits RHERITFR 15 - 43,875
Cash and cash equivalents HehHESZEEEHR 15 720,892 622,826
2,528,941 2,806,338
Total assets EEHAE 4,530,237 4,852,710
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity holders of AATEZFEAEGESR
the Company
Share capital A% A% 16 1,446 1,446
Share premium B 17 7 (B 16 1,453,188 1,453,188
Reserves ] 17 1,824,977 1,902,944
3,279,611 3,357,578
Non-controlling interests FEEHI RS (9,972) (16,716)
Total equity R 3,269,639 3,340,862
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Cont'd) GREERRR(E)

As at 31 March 2019

R2019F3H31H

2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings =R} 18 146,225 146,169
Deferred income tax liabilities FREFTERBE 19 39,889 34,494
Other non-current payable B FE T IE I B RRIR 21 22,934 20,148
209,048 200,811
Current liabilities REEE
Borrowings BE 18 300,000 313,264
Trade and bills payables FEGBERE R EE 20 568,485 781,651
Accruals and other payables FESHIB B & H b e~ 78 21 160,636 199,865
Derivative financial instruments TTESRT A 14 225 924
Current income tax liabilities BlEAFr S i B & 22,204 15,333
1,051,550 1,311,037
Total liabilites AEe® 1,260,598 1,511,848
Total equity and liabilities EEREEREE 4,530,237 4,852,710

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial — B&Bf Z M sE Ttk S4R A B AR R T Al sk 2
statements. B e

ZERHDTN2019F6 H20 B #E /4R A B S H®ER

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 20

June 2019 and were signed on its behalf: WREEZRHHEE
Wan Wai Loi Tou Kit Vai
FER HER
Director Director
EZE EE
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2019

RERRZBR

HE2019F3A31HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
AR REERE AR

Share Share
capital premium Reserves Sub-total

R o35 fE 1] N

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER TER TET
(Note 16) (Note 16) (Note 17)
(Kzk1e) (KzE1e) (WaE17)

Non-
controlling
interests
FEHIM RS
HK$'000
TER

Total
hE
HK$'000
TET

Balance at 1 April 2017 W201754A1R 2 8 1446 1,453,188 1722534 3,177,168 3,280 3180448
Comprehensive income: 2EHUA
Profit for the year FERA - - 744,035 744,035 (20,693) 723342
Other comprehensive income: HtZ2EHA
Currency translation differences EBREEE - - 251,908 251908 697 252,605
Total other comprehensive income, Hth2ABAEE -

net of tax A - - 251908 251908 697 252,605
Total comprehensive income 2ENALE - - 995,943 995,943 (19.99) 975,947
Transactions with owners: BREARS
Share-based compensation WP AEERZHe - - 169 169 - 1696
Dividends R & 3 - (817,229 (817,229) - (817,229)
Total transactions with owners BREARZAE - - (815,533) (815,533) - (815,533)
Balance at 31 March 2018 R201853A310 2 & 146 1,453,188 1,902,944 3,357,578 (16,716) 3,340,862
Balance at 1 April 2018 201854518 2 8 1446 1453188 1902944 3,357,578 (16716) 3,340,862
Comprehensive income: 2EHA
Profit for the year FERA - - 861,780 861,780 8,479 870,259
Other comprehensive income: Hiti2EEA :
Currency translation differences EaE = - - (210,999) (210,999) (1,735) (212,734)
Total other comprehensive income, Ht2mBAEE -

net of tax mewR T T (20999)  (210999) (1735) (12734
Total comprehensive income 2EBANEE - - 650,781 650,781 6,744 657,525
Transactions with owners: BEEARS
Share-based compensation MR AERE 2 B & - - 1,695 1,695 - 1,695
Dividends g - - (730,443) (730,443) - (730,443)
Total transactions with owners REsA xR - - (18748)  (128748) - (128,748
Balance at 31 March 2019 R2019F38310 2 &8 1,446 1,453,188 1,824,977 3,279,611 (9,972) 3,269,639

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

D e
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2019

GARSRER
HE2019F3A318ILEE

2019 2018
20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THAT

Cash flow from operating activities

RETHHEBRERE

Cash generated from operations CEELECZRS 29(a) 1,221,162 742,123
Interest paid B E (8,010) (7,346)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBNER (45,149) (115,756)
PRC tax paid 2 B IE (85,100) (46,826)
PRC dividends withholding tax paid AT BRI - (7,410)
1,082,903 564,785
Cash flow from investing activities REFTEHFEBHEERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME WMEKREZE (210,346) (148,835)
Increase in prepayment for land use rights o Hb {5 R R T A5 BRIE IS N (9,278) (8,985)
Proceeds from disposals of property, LEME BMERREKEZ 29(b)
plant and equipment FT 5 38 14,462 6,848
Dividends received from associates W B Bt = A R) 2 AR B 9(a) 21,683 20,435
Placement of short-term bank deposits FEARHBRITER 15 - (31,392)
Release of short-term bank deposits R R ITER 15 43,875 73,823
Interest income received 2 W F 2 A 11,615 8,234
(127,989) (79,872)
Cash flow from financing activities MEETBMBRENE
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEER (513,264) (188,437)
New bank borrowings HERITEE 500,000 30,000
Dividends paid BEIRA RS (730,444) (817,229)
7777777777777777777777777777777 ) . ~ (743,708) (975,666)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBLSEBEEEM
cash equivalents (R2) F5E 211,206 (490,753)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April P41 BZ2RE RS EEEE 622,826 995,538
Currency translation differences NS IR T o= %R (113,140) 118,041
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March M3A31AZEERESEEER 15 720,892 622,826

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial  BEMY Z MisE ot 45 M EMET A i 2
statements. TR o
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) are principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of textile
products. Its production bases are located in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and Vietnam.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church
Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
("HKS"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have
been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 June 2019.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The basis of preparation and principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied for all of the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”"). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss measured
at fair value.

R BRENEE
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BEXRGBERBRAR(TARAR]) RE
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EmBERE S -  HEEEMUNH
FARKAMBE(THE]) KB -

RATERAEHSTMKIZERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New standards, amendments to standards and interpretation to existing

standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the
first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1 April 2018:

Amendments to HKFRS 1
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(IFRIO)-Int 22

Annual improvements 2014-2016 cycle

Classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 financial instruments
with HKFRS 4 insurance contracts

Financial instruments

Revenue from contracts with
customers

Clarifications to HKFRS 15

Transfers of investment property

Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
and HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15") are

disclosed in Note 2.2.

Apart from aforementioned HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the other standards
did not have material impact on the Group’s accounting policies and did

not require any adjustments.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHEn

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(b) New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but are

not effective

HaRBRENEE (8)

B E

2.1 IWEEE (M)
(b) EMBEMAERERZ FETER R E

The following new and amended standards and interpretations have been

issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 April

2018 and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to Annual
Improvements Project
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Conceptual Framework for

Financial Reporting 2018

Amendments to
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

Amendments to
HKAS 1 & HKAS 8

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Annual improvements 2015-2017 cycle

Prepayment features with negative
compensation

Plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement

Long-term interests in associates and
joint ventures

Leases
Uncertainty over income tax

treatments

Revised conceptual framework for
financial reporting
Definition of a business

Definition of Material

Insurance contracts

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or
joint venture
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Effective for

annual periods
beginning on

or after

1 April 2019

1 April 2019

1 April 2019

1 April 2019

1 April 2019

1 April 2019

1 April 2020

1 April 2020

1 April 2020

1 April 2021

To be
determined
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBRRME (E)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 RREEEBRFIESHBEME(H)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d) 2.1 MBLEE (M)

(b) New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but are

not effective (Cont'd)
The Group's assessment of the impact of these new standards and
interpretations is set out below:

HKFRS 16, “Leases”

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet by lessees as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset
(the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

Impact

Based on management’s initial assessment, the initial adoption of HKFRS
16 in the future will result in an increase in the right-of-use assets and the
lease liabilities, which is expected to result in an increase in both assets
and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. The adoption will also
front-load the expense recognition in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the leases, as a result of the combination of the interest
expenses arising from the lease liabilities and the amortisation of the
right-of-use assets as compared to the rental expenses under existing
standard.

The overall impact on profit before income tax will not be affected
significantly, except interest expense on lease liability will be included in
“finance costs”, which are currently a part of rental expenses recognised.
The payment for lease liability will be mostly reflected in financing cash
flow, with the interest portion recognised as interests paid.

Date of adoption by Group

The Group will apply the standard from 1 April 2019. The Group intends to
apply the simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative
amounts for the year prior to first adoption. Right-of-use assets for leases
will be measured at the amount of the lease liability on adoption.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC) interpretations that are not yet
effective and that would be expected to have a material impact on the
entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) EABBBEM:T (B)
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 RREEEBRFIESHBEME(H)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d) 22 Bt BEREE (&)
2.2(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 22(b) BB TR EEREoN % db
TA

FAEMBHREEREIHRMAE
B R ERFE3R A MRER
SERAECHEERSRE
B RIEERAEBRTARS @
BEREMFRI

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate to the
recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments and
impairment of financial assets.

() SHERE=E

R2018F4 818 (BB M5
s ZE RSB oSk B XA B
) AEBEEED TG
AEEfMFESRHEENS
BEX - WESHEESRTA
DI BB B ISHREERE
O ZEE AR c EFHLE
EEMEEZENT ¢

(i) Classification and measurement
On 1 April 2018 (the date of initial application of HKFRS 9), the
Group’s management has assessed which business models apply to
the financial assets held by the Group and has classified its financial
instruments into the appropriate HKFRS 9 categories. The main
effects resulting from this reclassification are as follows:

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive

Available-for
sale financial
assets income

BRARE
AHRHME FARMEEHKA

TRMEE
HK$'000
TET

HemERE
HK$'000
Fb7

Closing balance as at 31 March 2018 - HKAS 39  R2018F3H31H F & &£k —
BERGIERE39% 853 -

Reclassify investments from available-for-sale
financial assets to financial assets at fair value

HEERAHEHESREEEMN
PEREARERARMEE

through other comprehensive income WAREREE (853) 853
Opening balance as at 1 April 2018 — HKFRS 9 R2018F4 B 1B EEHR—
BB R EERFER - 853

Other financial assets, which were previously classified as loan and

receivables category under HKAS 39, are now classified as financial
assets at amortised cost and have no impact on their measurement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBRRME(E)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 REEHEHEIETSTHEME (H)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)
2.2(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont'd)

22 B BUREE ()
22(b) BB & ERFEoHN = G
TA#E)
(i) EFEEHE

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has four types of financial assets at amortised cost
subject to HKFRS 9's new expected credit loss model:

Trade and bills receivables;

Other receivables (excluding prepayments);

Amounts due from associates; and

Short term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

The Group was required to revise its impairment methodology
under HKFRS 9 for each of these classes of financial assets.

While cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits
are also subject to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

For other receivables, management considers that their credit
risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition with
reference to the counterparty historical default rate and current
financial position. The impairment provision is determined based on
the 12-month expected credit losses which is immaterial.

Trade and bills receivables and amounts due from associates

The Group applies the simplified approach to measure the expected
credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade and bills receivables
and amounts due from associates.

The adoption of the simplified expected loss approach under
HKFRS 9 has not resulted in any additional impairment loss for trade
receivables and amounts due from associates as at 1 April 2018.

Impairment losses on trade receivables is presented within
operating profit from 1 April 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) Gal

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

R W ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 GFREEBFITZSHEEHRE (H)

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d) 22 Bt BEREE (&)

2.2(c) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18 Revenue, which resulted in changes in
accounting policies that relate to timing of revenue recognition and
presentation of contract liabilities.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a significant impact on when
the Group recognises revenue from sales of goods.

As a result of the changes in the Group's accounting policies, certain
reclassifications are not reflected in the consolidated balance sheet as at
31 March 2018, but are recognised in the opening consolidated balance
sheet on 1 April 2018.

The following table shows the adjustment recognised for individual line
item. Line items that were not affected by the changes have not been
included.

The impact of the reclassifications are as follows:

22(c) BEYHIREERFI55 K H

BEEEHZ KA

BS M HREEL F155 A
B EAFE185IRA - &
BYETRAERRERELN
BESINSTBERES -

RMEBMIEHREERFE155
HAKE M ERHEESmA
BRALESAZE -

HRASEE ST BRONEE
BT EHHEILARNR20185F3
A EMGEEERBRYR
ML B R2018F4 A1 B B E 4
REEEBBERPER -

TRIITHE EBAL RAK
BE - URBATEZHYE
WA -

EXBROFENT

Receipt in Contract
advance liabilities

RRIE BNEE

HKS$'000 HK$'000
THT THET

Closing balance as at 31 March 2018 - HKAS 18 R2018F3A31 B FE R AR —
EAg LS 185

Reclassifying receipts in advance to contract liabilities ~ BTN ZBEH S EESNEE

5179 =
(5179 5179

Opening balance as at 1 April 2018 — HKFRS 15 R2018F4 81 H F AR —
BB TSR SR E 155

= 5179

As at 31 March 2019, contract liabilities of HK$794,000 represented
receipt in advance from customers. These items were included in
accruals and other payables (Note 21).
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7201983 A31H © 794,000 7T
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BHEn

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.3 Subsidiaries

2.3.1 Consolidation

e R BRENE ()

RAEEETEEREME (H)

23 fIEATR

231

Subsidiaries are entities (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the aggregate fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition related costs
are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date
fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwiill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.3 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

2.3.1
(a)

(b)

(©)

Consolidation (Cont'd)

Business combinations (Cont'd)

Intra-Group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group's
accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change in
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions - that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between the fair value of any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHEn

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

2.3.2 Separate financial statements
Interests in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
also includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.4 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date
of acquisition and the investor's share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income. The Group's interests
in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference between the cost
of the associate and the Group's share of the aggregate fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its investments in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

e R BRENE ()

2

RAEEETEEREME (H)
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232 BUEIRZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBRRME (E)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 RREEEBRFIESHBEME(H)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.4 Associates (Cont’d) 2.4 BEE N T (48)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investments in associates are impaired. If this is the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to “share of profit of an associate” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions
between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group's financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial information
of associates has been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors collectively, who make strategic decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the group entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in HKS, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group's presentation currency.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’'d)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuations where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

F